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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

2 3 REGION 5
g M g 77 WEST JACKSON BOULEVARD
o oS CHICAGO, IL 60604-3590
4L pROVE
REPLY TO THE ATTENTION OF:
. C-14J
L 19 2006

CERTIFIED MATI, 7001 0320 0006 0176 9312
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Thomas J. Dzierwa, Registered Agent
Reservoir Research Corporation

816 Browns Lake

Jackson, Michigan 49203

Re: Issuance of Final Administrative Consent Order
Reservoir Research Corporation
DOCKET NO.SDWA-05-2006-0001

Dear Mr. Dzierwa:

Enclosed is a fully executed Final Administrative Consent Order (Consent
Order) issued to you for violations of the Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA), 42
U.S.C. § 300f et seq., and the Underground Injection Control (UIC) regulations
promilgated under Section 1421 and 1422 of the SDWA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 300h and
300h-1.

Pursuant to Paragraph 38 of the Consent Order, the Order becomes effective 30
days after the date it is signed by the Director of the Water Division (or any
person acting in her place). Payment of the $4765.83 penalty is due in two
installments, with a first payment of $2375.00 due within 30 days after the
effective date of the Consent Order and a second payment of $2390.83 (which
includes statutory interest on the delayed payment of the balance due), due
within 120 days after the effective of this Consent Order. Please place the
following billing document reference number on the penalty check:

2750668W001 . The penalty check should be mailed to the address set
forth at Paragraph 38 of the Consent Order. Please send a copy of the check
and its accompanying transmittal letter to Thomas Krueger, Assistant Regional
Counsel, USEPA, 77 West Jackson Blvd., (Cl4J) Chicago, Illinois 60604-3590.

Failure to comply with the Order can result in additional enforcement actions
against Reservoir Research Corporation to achieve compliance. Moreover,
compliance with this Consent Order does not relieve the well owner or operator
from further enforcement actions pursuant to Section 1423 (c) of the SDWA, 42
U.S.C. § 300h-2(c).

Recycled/Recyclable + Printed with Vegetable Qil Based Inks on 100% Recycled Paper (50% Postconsumer)



If you have any questions regarding the Order, please do not hesitate to
contact Eva Marie Rowe of my staff at (312) 353-0829, or Thomas Krueger,
Assistant Regional Counsel at (312) 886-0562.

Sincerely yours,

Jo Lynr% ] .
Directdr, Water Dfyision

Enclosure

cc: Pat McComb-Elowski, Michigan Department of Environmental Management
Regional Hearing Clerk
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CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER

I. GENERAL ALLEGATIONS AND STATUTORY AUTHORITY

1. This is an administrative action for the assessment of a

civil penalty commenced and concluded under Section 1423 (c) of

~

the Safe Drinking Water Act ("SDWA"), 42 U.S.C. § 300h-2(c), and

Sections 22.1(a) (2), 22.13(b), and 22.18(b) of the Consolidated

Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of

Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of

Permits (Consolidated Rules) as codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 22

(2004). In particular, this proceeding was conducted in

accordance with the procedures set forth in the Consolidated

Rules at 40 C.F.R. Part 22, Subpart I, which apply to actions,

such as this one, that are not governed by Section 554 of the

Administrative Procedure Act ("APA"), 5 U.S.C. § 554.

2. The Director, Water Division, Region 5, United States

Environmental Protection Agency ("U.S. EPA"), is, by lawful

delegation, the Complainant.

3. The Respondent is Reservoir Research Corporation

(hereinafter "Respondent" or "Reservoir"), which is, and has been



continuously since at least 2001, a corporation organized under
the laws of the State of Michigan.

4. Where the parties agree to settle one or more causes of
action before the filing of a complaint, the administrative
action may be commenced and concluded simultaneously by the
igssuance of a Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO). 40
C.F.R. § 22.13(b) (2004).

5. The parties agree that settling this action without the
filing of a complaint or the adjudication of any issue of fact or
law is in their interest and in the public interest.

6. Respondent consents to entry of this CAFO and the
assessment of the specified civil penalty, and agrees to comply
with the terms of the CAFO.

II. JURISDICTION AND WAIVER OF RIGHT TO HEARING

7. Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations in
this CAFO and neither admits nor denies the factual allegations
in this CAFO.

8. Respondent waives its right to request a hearing as
provided at 40 C.F.R. § 22.15(c), any right to contest the
allegations in this CAFO, and its right to appeal this CAFO.

IITI. STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND

9. Section 1421 of SDWA, 42 U.S.C. § 300h, requires that
U.S. EPA promulgate regulations, which shall include inspection,
monitoring, recordkeeping and reporting requirements, for State
underground injection control ("UIC") programs that prevent the

endangerment to drinking water sources by underground injection.



10. Section 1422(b) of SDWA, 42 U.S.C. § 300h-1(b),
provides that States, upon receipt of U.S. EPA’'s approval of a
proposed UIC program, may implement a Federally-enforceable UIC
program in that State and obtain primary enforcement
responsibility of that program (a concept called "primacy").

11. Section 1422 (c) of SDWA, 42 U.S.C. § 300h-1(c), further
provides that, in states that have not obtained primacy, U.S. EPA
is to promulgate, implement and enforce an applicable UIC program
in that State.

12. Pursuant to Sections 1421 and 1422 of SDWA, 42 U.S.C.
§§ 300h and 300h-1, respectively, U.S. EPA has promulgated UIC
regulations at 40 C.F.R. Parts 144 through 147.

13. The UIC program for the State of Michigan is set forth
at 40 C.F.R. Part 147, Subpart X.

14. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 147.1151, the UIC program for
the State of Michigan for Class II wells, as defined by 40 C.F.R.
§§ 144.6, 146.5, consists of the UIC program reguirements set
forth at, inter alia, 40 C.F.R. Parts 124, 144, 146, 147 (Subpart
X) and 148, and was effective on June 25, 1984.

15. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 147.1151, at all times relevant
to this Complaint, U.S. EPA had primacy over Class II wells, as
defined by 40 C.F.R. 8§ 144.6, 146.5, in the State of Michigan.

16. The UIC program set forth at 40 C.F.R. § 147.1151,
constitutes the "applicable underground injection control
program" as defined by Section 1422 (d) of SDWA, 42 U.S.C.

§ 300h-1(d), for the State of Michigan.



ITI. FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

17. The Denning #3-20 SWD well is a "well," as defined at
40 C.F.R. § 144.3, located in Hillsdale County, Michigan.

18. The Denning #3-20 SWD well is a Class II well, as
defined by 40 C.F.R. 8§ 144.6 and 146.5.

19. The Denning #3-20 SWD well is subject to the federally
promulgated UIC requirements set forth at 40 C.F.R. Part 147,
Subpart X.

20. On December 1, 2000, pursuant to the regulations at
40 C.F.R. Part 144, U.S. EPA issued to Respondent Underground
Injection Control Permit No. MI-059-2D-C012 ("the Permit").

21. The Permit authorizes the commercial disposal of fluids
related to the production of o0il and gas as approved by the
Director, subject to terms and conditions set forth in the
permit.

22. At times relevant to this Complaint, Respondent has
performed, or has been authorized to perform, underground
injection of fluids into the Denning #3-20 SWD well.

23. Brine is a "fluid" as defined at 40 C.F.R. § 144.3.

24. The subsurface emplacement of brine through the Denning
#3-20 SWD well is a "well injection" as defined at 40 C.F.R.

§ 144.3.

25. Respondent’s "well injection" is an "underground

injection" as defined by 40 C.F.R. § 144.3,.

26. Respondent is the Permittee under the Permit.



27. Condition I.E.1 of the Permit and 40 C.F.R. § 144.51(a)
require the Permittee to comply with the requirements of the
Permit.

28. Section 1423 (a) of SDWA, 42 U.S.C. § 300h-2(a),
provides, inter alia, that U.S. EPA may issue an order under
Section 1423 (c) of SDWA, 42 U.S.C. § 300h-2(c), to any person
found to be in violation of any regulation or requirement of an

applicable UIC program in a State that does not have primacy.

29. Section 1423(c) (2) of SDWA, 42 U.S.C. § 300h-2(c) (2),
provides that U.S. EPA may issue to ény person in violation of
any regulation or requirement relating to the underground
injection of brine or other fluids which are brought to the
surface in connection with o0il or natural gas production, an
administrative order assessing a civil penalty of not more than
$5,000 for each day of violation for any past or current
violation, up to a maximum administrative penalty of $125,000, or
requiring compliance with such regulation or requirement, or
both. Pursuant to the Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act,
28 U.S.C. § 2461, as amended by the Debt Collection Improvement
Act of 1996 (“DCIA”), these statutory maximums were increased to
$5,500 for each day of violation for any past or current
violation, up to a maximum administrative penalty of $137,500,
for violations that occurred from January 31, 1997 to March 15,
2004; and increased to $6,500 for each day of violation for any

past or current violation, up to a maximum administrative penalty



of $157,500, for violations that occurred after March 15, 2004.
(See 40 C.F.R. Part 19, as amended by 69 Fed. Reg. 7121 (Feb. 13,

2004)) .

30. Part II.B.3.(b) (i) of the Permit and 40 C.F.R. Sections
144 .51 (a)and 144.51(1) (4) require Respondent to submit to U.S.
EPA quarterly monitoring reports that “.shall include the
measurements of annulus liquid loss, as required in Parts
IT.B.2(d) and III.A. of this permit”.

31. Part II.B.3.(b) (iii) of the Permit and 40 C.F.R.
Sections 144.51(a)and 144.51(1) (4) require Respondent to submit
to U.S. EPA quarterly monitoring reports that “..shall include the
measurements of injected fluid characteristics as required in
Part III.A. of this permit”.

32. Respondent failed to submit to U.S. EPA quarterly
monitoring reports for the Denning #3-20 well from the second
gquarter of calendar year 2001 through the second quarter of
calendar year 2005.

33. Respondent’s failure to submit quarterly monitoring
reports constitute violations of Parts II.B.3.(b) (i) and (iii) of
the Permit and 40 C.F.R. Sections 144.51(a) and 144.51(1) (4).

34. Respondent’s violation of Parts II.B.3.(b) (i) and (iii)
of the Permit and 40 C.F.R. Sections 144.51(a) and 144.51(1) (4)
subjects Respondent to the issuance of an administrative order

pursuant to Section 1423 (c) (2) of SDWA, 42 U.S.C. § 300h-2(c) (2).



IV. CONSENT AGREEMENT

Based upon the foregoing allegations and stipulations, and
having taken into account the requirements of Section 1423 (c) (4)
of SDWA, 42 U.S.C. § 300h-2(c) (4), Complainant and Respondent
agree as follows:

35. Respondent waives any and all rights under any
provision of law to a hearing on the allegations in the Complaint
or to appeal or otherwise challenge the terms and conditions of
this CAFO.

36. Respondent certifies that, to the best of its knowledge
after reasonable inquiry, it is in compliance with the Permit and
the other UIC requirements applicable to the Denning #3-20 SWD
well.

37. In settlement of the violations alleged in the
Complaint, Respondent shall pay a civil penalty in the amount of
$4765.83, such civil penalty to be considered assessed upon the

effective date of this CAFO.

38. Respondent shall pay the $4765.83 civil penalty for the
violations alleged in the Complaint by mailing a certified or
cashier’s check, made payable to "Treasurer, United States of

America," to the following address:

U.S. EPA, Region 5

P.O. Box 70753

Chicago, Illinois 60673
Payment of the civil penalty is due in two installments, with a
first payment of $2375 due within 30 days after the effective

date of this CAFO (see Section v below) and a second payment of

$2390.83 (which includes statutory interest on the delayed



payment of the balance due), due within 120 days after the
effective date of this CAFO.

39. Simultaneous with Respondent's payment of the civil
penalty in accordance with Paragraph 37 above, Respondent shall
separately send notice of each such payment, including a copy of

the checks, to the following parties:

Regional Hearing Clerk

U.S. EPA, Region 5 (E-19J)

77 West Jackson Boulevard
Chicago, Illinois 60604-3590

Thomas Krueger

Associate Regional Counsel
U.S. EPA, Region 5 (C-14J)

77 West Jackson Boulevard
Chicago, Illinois 60604-3590

Eva-Marie Rowe

Underground Injection Control Branch
Water Division

U.S. EPA, Region 5 (WU-16J)

77 West Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, Illinois 60604-3590

40. A failure to pay any civil penalty assessed herein
after the effective date of this order may result in a civil
action brought pursuant to Section 1423 (c) (7) of SDWA, 42 U.S.C.
§ 300h-2(c) (7), for the recovery of such overdue amounts, costs,
late payment penalties, interest and attorneys’ fees as are
authorized therein. |

41. This CAFO constitutes full settlement of all
allegations asserted in the Complaint against Respondent.

42. Respondent consents to the terms of this CAFO,
including, but not limited to, the assessment of the $4750.83

civil penalty.



43, This CAFO shall be binding upon Respondent, its
successors and assigns.

44. Nothing in this CAFO relieves Respondent of its duty to
comply with all Federal, State and local laws, regulations and
permits. This paragraph includes, but is not limited to, the
laws, regulations and/or permits that are the subject of this
proceeding.

45. Complainant and Respondent each agree to bear all of
their own costs and attorneys fees incurred with respect to this
adjudication.

46. The undersigned representative of Respondent certifies
that he is duly authorized to bind Respondent to the terms of
this CAFO.

47. After executing this CAFO, Respondent consents to the
filing of this fully executed CAFO with the Regional Hearing
Clerk without further notice to Respondent. Complainant agrees
to deliver to Respondent expeditiously a copy of the fully
executed and file-stamped CAFO after filing it with the Regional
Hearing Clerk. |

48. Issuance of this CAFO does not constitute a waiver by
U.S. EPA of its remedies, either judicial or administrative,
under any law, except that U.S. EPA waives any right to seek
additional civil penalties (i.e., civil penalties other than
those assessed herein) for the violations alleged in the
Complaint.

49. This CAFO constitutes the entire settlement agreement

between Complainant and Respondent.
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V. EFFECTIVE DATE

50. For purposes of Section 1423 (c) (3) (D), 42 U.S.C.
§ 300h-2(c) (3) (D), this CAFO shall be considered issued upon
filing with the Regional Hearing Clerk.

51. Pursuant to Section 1423 (c) (3) (D), 42 U.S.C.
§ 300h-2(c) (3) (D), this CAFO will become effective 30 days after
issuance, which is 30 days after the filing of this CAFO with the

Regional Hearing Clerk.

Reservoir Research Corporation

RESPONDENT
! 7
/‘;_;./"’/ /// N L/ e
" (L Dated: % /& J¢

Thomas J. Pzierwa, Registered Agent
Reservoir Research Corporation

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

COMPLAINANT
‘/r\/\,:\ C ._L%, R NTRECN Dated: /. Cﬂ} MAVI 7
Jo Lynn Traub, Director

Water Division

U.S. EPA, Region 5 (W-15J)

77 West Jackson Boulevard
Chicago, Illinois 60604-3590

SDWA-05-2006-0001



11

Consent Agreement and Final Order
In the Matter of Reservoir Research Corporation

Docket No. [gpwa-05-2006-0001 !

FINAL ORDER
The foregoing Consent Agreement is hereby approved and
incorporated by reference into this Final Order. The settling
Regpondent, Reservoir Research Corporation, is hereby ORDERED to
comply with all terms of the Consent Agreement, which shall be
effective 30 days after the filing of the Consent Agreement and
Final Order with the Regional Hearing Clerk.

Y/ A

Jo Lynn Traub, Director
Water Division

U.S. EPA, Region 5 (W-¥5J)

77 West Jackson Boulevard
Chicago, Illinois 60604-3590

e l\";}%
R R TN
oo S

G o 61 0 9



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Eva-Marie Rowe, certify that [ hand delivered the original and one copy of the

Consent Agreement and Final Order, docket number SDWA-05-2006-0001, to the
Regional Hearing Clerk, Region 5, United States Environmental Protection Agency, and
that I mailed a correct copy by first-class, postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt

requested, to Reservoir Research Corporation by placing it in the custody of the United

States Postal Service addressed as follows: g
=Y o >
e ™
Thomas J. Dzierwa, Registered Agent Mf c 2
Reservoir Research Corporation = ~ S
816 Browns Lake = vy
Jackson, Michigan 49203 Tl -
i =
- N
Y3

on the 19th day of July, 2006.

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 5

77 West Jackson Boulevard (WU-16J)
Chicago, Illinois 60604

CERTIFIED MAIL RECEIPT NUMBER: 7001 0320 0006 0176 9312




